
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
     November 4, 2019 

   Agenda 
 

 
                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. Executive Session – Economic Development (Auburn Industrial Park), pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 405(6)(C) 

B. Timber Harvest Shoreland Zoning Amendment Option 1–Megan Norwood & Audrey Knight (15 minutes) 

C. Agricultural Zone Discussion (Income) – (50 minutes) 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Fournier 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items - All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen so requests, in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on 
the Agenda.  

 
1. Order 129-11042019* 

Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the November 5, 2019 Election. 
 

2. Order 130-11042019* 

Accepting the transfer of $1,540.00 forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police 
Department (Unified Criminal Court Docket No. CR-17-1525 Kamau Thompson). 

 
II.          Minutes – October 21, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• CAPER – Zachary Lenhert  

• Communication - Mass Gathering Application (New Year’s Eve Auburn Event) 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                     
V. Unfinished Business  
 
1. Order 111-09162019 

Approving the renewal of the Auto Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Morris Auto Parts located at 940 
Washington St. N. 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

2. Ordinance 14-10212019 
Adopting the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment (965 Minot Avenue). Public hearing and second reading. 
 

3. Ordinance 13-10212019 
Amending Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual 
Adjustment of Maximum Benefits, Appendices A, B, C and H, effective 10/01/2019 to 9/30/2020. Second 
reading. 
 

4. Order 125-10212019 
Appointing Kelsey Earle to serve on the Lewiston Auburn Transit Committee (LATC) for a three-year 
term. 

 
VI. New Business  

 
1. Order 131-11042019 

Approving the liquor license and special amusement permit for Firehouse Grill. Public hearing. 
 

2. Order 132-11042019 
Confirming the Mayor’s appointment of James Pross as a regular voting member of the Ethics 
Committee for a three-year term.  
 

3. Order 133-11042019 
Confirming the Mayor’s appointment of Leonard Kimble as a regular voting member of the Ethics 
Committee for a one-year term.  
 

4. Order 134-11042019 
Confirming the Mayor’s appointment of Jared Doyle as an alternate member of the Ethics Committee for 
a three-year term.  

 
VII. Reports 

a.  Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX. Executive Session  
 
X. Adjournment 
 
 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 4, 2019 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Economic development (Auburn Industrial Park), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: November 4, 2019 
 
Author: Audrey Knight, City Planner  
 

Subject: Shoreland Zoning Timber Harvesting Planning Board Recommendation (Option 1) 
 
Information:  The Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry (DACF), Bureau of Forestry and the Maine State 
Legislature enacted statewide standards for Timber Harvesting and Related Activities in Shoreland Areas in 2013. The 
City Manager received a letter from the Director of the Maine Forest Service on January 7, 2019 requesting the City to 
update the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance to address the standards, as required by the Mandatory Shoreland Zoning Act, 
administered by the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP).  
 
Each municipality in the State has been given three different options to address adopted State standards: 

- Option 1: To have the Maine Forest Service assume administration and enforcement of the science-based 
standards. This entails repealing existing locally adopted Timber Harvest language, so the State Standards 
prevail.  

- Option 2: Repeal and Replacement (in its entirety) of the State language and an additional determination and 
agreement on roles and responsibilities to be shared by the City and the State. Any changes that occur at the 
State level in the future would require the City to mirror those amendments.  

- Option 3: Requires local ordinances to be updated to be at least as stringent as the State standards without 
assistance from the State for enforcement and administration. The City would need an extensive update to the 
existing code.  

 
On October 8, 2019, the Planning Board voted to make a recommendation to City Council in favor of Option 1 that the 
City repeal Sec. 60-1003 and enable to the State Forest Service to administer and enforce timber harvests in the 
Shoreland Zone with the following findings:  

• Option one aids in reducing the burden on Staff and allows the City to utilize free State help and services; 

• Expertise is not currently available on City Staff to administer options two and three effectively; 

• This recommendation is made with the understanding that commercial forestry is not a large enough sector of 
the City’s local economy to justify the required investments to implement options two or three effectively.  
 

Ordinance Language to be Repealed:    Chapter 60, Article XII, Division 5. Shoreland Overlay District (SLO), Sec. 60-1003. 

- Timber harvesting.   (attached) and replaced with: “Chapter 21, Statewide Standards for Timber Harvesting in 

Shoreland Areas apply.”  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Option 1 has no impact on the City budget whereas Option 2 would require shared 
responsibilities between the City and the State in enforcing a new timber harvesting ordinance which may require 
additional Staff. Option 3 would require hiring a Forester to administer the ordinance effectively. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Planning Staff recommends the City Council approve the Planning Boards recommendation 
to repeal Sec. 60-1003 and enable the State Forest Service to administer and enforce timber harvests in the Shoreland 
Zone in the City. As stated in the findings and Staff report, regardless of the potential land area or forest management 
activity that could occur in these areas of the City, the work requires a specialized skill set that is not available in-house. 
Option two, adoption of a new ordinance requiring the State to implement, review and enforce, would appear to gain 
little and cost both time and money to both arrive at a “joint agreement” as well as to implement. Option three would  



 
 
 
 
 
 
be recommended for jurisdictions with either a large tree harvesting industry and local staff or contracted experts in the 
logging industry, or those with limited shoreland and/or forests, so there would be no need for Forest Service assistance 
and limited to no impacts to watersheds.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Planning Board received information and an overview of both the Shoreland Zone, 
and this Section of the ordinance July 9, 2019.  Planning Board members requested further information from the state. A 
joint workshop with the Conservation Commission, attended by Thomas Gilbert, Water Resources Specialist, Maine 
Forest Service, was held on September 10, 2019 in which substantive questions were asked and discussed.  The Planning 
Board received the Conservation Commission’s recommendation on this matter, held a public hearing which garnered 
support, and voted unanimously in favor of Option 1, on October 8, 2019.  

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:      
 

Attachments:  
- October 10, 2019 Planning Board Staff Report  
- Conservation Commission Recommendation 
- Ordinance Amendment (Sec. 60-1003. ) 



 
Chapter 60, Article XII, Division 5. Shoreland Overlay District (SLO),  
 

Sec. 60-1003. - Timber harvesting. Repealed - “Chapter 21, Statewide Standards for Timber 

Harvesting in Shoreland Areas apply.”  
 
(  

 

 

Formatted: list0

Deleted: a)  In a resource protection district abutting a 
great pond, timber harvesting shall be limited to the 
following: ¶
(1)   Within the strip of land extending 75 feet, horizontal 
distance, inland from the normal high-water line, timber 
harvesting may be conducted when the following 
conditions are met: ¶
a.  The ground is frozen; ¶
b.  There is no resultant soil disturbance; ¶
c.  The removal of trees is accomplished using a cable or 
boom and there is no entry of tracked or wheeled vehicles 
into the 75-foot strip of land; ¶
d.  There is no cutting of trees less than six inches in 
diameter; no more than 30 percent of the trees six inches 
or more in diameter, measured at four and one-half feet 
above ground level, are cut in any ten-year period; and a 
well-distributed stand of trees and other natural 
vegetation remains; and ¶
e.  A licensed professional forester has marked the trees 
to be harvested prior to a permit being issued by the 
municipality. ¶
¶

(2)   Beyond the 75-foot strip referred to in subsection 
(a)(1) above, timber harvesting is permitted in accordance 
with subsection (b) below except that in no case shall the 
average residual basal area of trees over four and one-half 
inches in diameter at four and one-half feet above ground 
level be reduced to less than 30 square feet per acre. ¶
(b)  Except in areas as described in subsection (a) above, 
timber harvesting shall conform with the following 
provisions: ¶
(1)  Selective cutting of no more than 40 percent of the 
total volume of trees four inches or more in diameter 
measured at four and one-half feet above ground level on 
any lot in any ten-year period is permitted. In addition: ¶
a.  Within 100 feet, horizontal distance, of the normal 
high-water line of a great pond classified GPA or a river 
flowing to a great pond classified GPA, and within 75 feet, 
horizontal distance, of the normal high-water line of other 
water bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge of a 
wetland, there shall be no clearcut openings and a well-
distributed stand of trees and other vegetation, including 
existing ground cover, shall be maintained. ¶
b.  At distances greater than 100 feet, horizontal 
distance, of a great pond classified GPA or a river flowing 
to a great pond classified GPA, and greater than 75 feet, 
horizontal distance, of the normal high-water line of other 
water bodies or the upland edge of a wetland, harvesting 
operations shall not create single clearcut openings 
greater than 10,000 square feet in the forest canopy. 
Where such openings exceed 5,000 square feet they shall 
be at least 100 feet, horizontal distance, apart. Such 
clearcut openings shall be included in the calculation of 
total volume removal. Volume may be considered to be 
equivalent to basal area. ¶
(2)  Timber harvesting operations exceeding the 40 
percent limitation in subsection (b)(1) above, may be ...

































 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 4, 2019    

 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager 

 
Subject: Proposed Amendment to the Agriculture and Resource Protection Zone 

 
 

Information:   
 
This workshop will focus on potential amendments to the current 50% income rule in the Agriculture and Resource 
Protection (AG) Zone using either The State Farming Land Use or a proposed staff concept. A proposal for a special 
exception for current non-conforming 3-10 acre lots will also be discussed. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 

Staff Recommended Action:   
 

Previous Meetings and History: 
Multiple Workshops September & October 2019 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
  

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:       
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Attachment(s): 
 
AG Zone Workshop Power Point  



Agriculture and Resource 
Protection (AG) Zone 
Workshop
NOVEMBER 4, 2019



Options for Replacing the 50% 
Income Rule

State Farming Land Use Requirement

Staff Concept



State Farming Land Use Requirement

1. Minimum size- 5 contiguous acres used for farming activities

2. Farming Use- eligible activities:
 Crops/Livestock products
 Does not include forestry, composting, marijuana, among others

3. Income standard- $2,000/year

4. Income report- State requires every 5 years

Will we require enrollment in the State Use program or use these guidelines to 
adopt a local standard?



State 
Program
Proposed 
Ordinance

Farm means any parcel of land containing more than ten acres which is 
used in the raising of agricultural products, livestock or poultry, or for 
dairying. The term "farm," under the Agricultural and Resource 
Protection District must provide proof of participation in the Maine 
Farmland Property Tax Program or meet the minimum requirements of 
the Property Tax Program shall be further defined as meeting the 
following criteria:


 1) The property owner is required to have at least five contiguous 
acres in their parcel of land.

 2) The land must be used for farming. agriculture or horticulture 
and can include woodland and wasteland.

 3) The parcel must contribute at least $2,000 gross income from 
farming activities each year.



Staff Concept
 Change the income criteria from 50% to 40% of household income 

 Add an option to use median Auburn household income instead of 
individual income

 Median Auburn Household Income is $46,976 per the Crossroads 
report- meaning lots that generate at least $18,790 in farming 
revenue would qualify (lower earning households can qualify with 
less farming revenue). 

 Can include additional components such as a farm plan if Council 
deems necessary.

 Include a special exception for non-conforming lots 3-10 acres



Staff Concept
Proposed Ordinance



Use of Non-Conforming Lots
(3 – 10 acre) in the AG Zone

 Proposal: Give the Planning Board the ability to make exceptions on 
a case by case basis for properties in the non-conforming lots (as of 
January 1, 2018) based on the following criteria:

 Must meet the income standard adopted

 Notification of abutters with a public comment



3 to 10-Acre Lot 
Proposed 
Ordinance

On lots greater than 3 acres but less than 10 acres a dwelling may be 
constructed if approved as a special exception pursuant to section 60-145.b.18.  

60-145.b.18

(18) One-family detached dwellings, including manufactured housing subject 
to all the design standards, except the siting requirements of section 60-173, as 
set forth in article XII of this chapter, accessory to farming operations subject to 
the following restrictions: 

a.  No certificate of occupancy shall be issued for any such farm residence until 
the barns, livestock pens, silos, or other such buildings or structures which are to 
be erected in connection with the proposed agricultural use as shown on the 
plans and specifications presented to the municipal officer charged with 
enforcement are substantially completed. 

b. After a recommendation by the Agricultural Committee finding the following:

1. The applicant has provided a farm business plan that appears feasible and, if 
implemented, will meet the definition of a farm.

2. The parcel proposed can reasonably accommodate the proposed farm.

3.The applicant has demonstrated a commitment to the proposed farm use 
and the proposed residence will be accessory to farming.  



3 to 10-Acre Lot 
Proposed 
Ordinance

c. The parcel contains more than 3 acres of land area and 
otherwise meets the requirements of Chapter 60 Zoning.  

d. In no case shall any farm residence constructed under the 
provisions of this section after the effective date of the amended 
ordinance from which this section is derived continue to be 
occupied as a residence if the principal agricultural use has 
been abandoned or reduced in scope below the minimum 
requirements as shown on the plans and specifications presented 
to the municipal officer charged with enforcement. 

e. Any residence constructed under this article shall not be 
converted to nonfarm residential use except by permission of the 
planning board based upon a finding that the abandonment or 
reduction in such use resulted from causes beyond the control of 
the applicant and not from any intention to circumvent the 
requirements of this article.



Next Steps



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 4, 2019  Order: 129-11042019    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
 
Subject:  Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the November 5, 2019 Election. 
 
Information:   
 
Warden and Ward Clerk Appointments are made every two years. Appointments were made in February of 2018 for the 
2018-2019 term, however, there have been a few vacancies again for this election. The City Clerk has nominated the 
individuals below to fill the Warden and Ward Clerk vacancies for the November 5, 2019 Election. 
 
Paul Ouellette – Warden 
Roland Jordan – Warden 
Stephen Buchanan - Warden 
Stephen Martelli – Ward Clerk 
Crystal Buchanan – Ward Clerk 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Appointments are made every two years or when there is a vacancy. 

 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

 
Attachments: Order 129-11042019 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 129-11042019 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints to serve as Stephen Buchanan, Paul Ouellette,  
and Roland Jordan to serve as Wardens and Crystal Buchanan and Stephen Martelli to serve as 
Ward Clerks for the November 5, 2019 Election. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:   November 4, 2019     Order:  130-11042019 
 
Author:  Jason D. Moen, Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Assets – Kamau Thompson 
 

Information:   
In May 2017, an officer from the Auburn Police Department assigned to the United States Drug Enforcement 
Administration initiated a drug investigation involving Kamau Thompson. The officer conducted “controlled 
buys” into Thompson which resulted in the seizure of crack cocaine. The resulting seizure lead to the 
acquisition of an arrest warrant for Thompson. Upon executing the arrest warrant, the officer located 
additional drugs and currency in the amount of $1,540.00 which was the result of selling illegal drugs.  
Kamau Thompson was arrested for three counts of Aggravated Trafficking of a Schedule “W” Drug (Class A) 
and Unlawful Possession of a Scheduled Drug (Class D).  Based on the investigation, the currency was 
determined to be profit from the sale of illegal drugs. 

 
 

City Budgetary Impacts: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $1,540.00 U.S. 
Currency to the Auburn Police Department.  Funds will be used for ongoing K-9 expenses. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $1,540.00. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:      
 

Attachments:  
Order 130-11042019 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 130-11042019 
 

Ordered, that the Auburn City Council hereby accepts the transfer of $1,540.00 forfeiture assets 
in Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department (Unified Criminal Court Docket No. 
CR-17-1525 Kamau Thompson). 

 















 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    November 4, 2019 
 
Author:  Zachary Lenhert 
 

Subject:  Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
 
Information:  The goal of the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) is to report and assess 
the progress made towards achieving strategic plan goals.  The CAPER is entered and submitted to HUD through the 
Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS).  The data used in the CAPER comes from goals entered into IDIS 
for the Action Plan and from activity accomplishment reports. 
 
Major accomplishments for the Community Development Program include: Supporting the construction of new 
affordable housing (62 Spring St, 477 Minot Ave, 48 Hampshire St.), Making neighborhoods safe and walkable with 
pedestrian improvements on Chestnut St and road design for Library Ave.  Creation and management of two community 
gardens with plans for a third underway, prevent the deterioration of the housing stock with significant investments in 
residential rehab projects, and improve the quality of life for senior citizens with the expansion of the Senior Center. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 

 
Staff Recommended Action:   Review Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) and offer 
comments 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:           
 

Attachments:  CAPER draft 
 



 CAPER 1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes 

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan.  91.520(a)  
This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and executed throughout the program year. 
 

Support Construction of New Affordable Housing: Development of new affordable housing has been a large focus in Auburn the past few 

years.  In Auburn, construction of 41 new resedential units and 2 commercial spaces at 62 Spring Street.  The building has received its certificate 

of occupancy and only a few administrative tasks remain until final draw and closeout of the activity.  Of the 41 units 32 will be affordable.  In 

Lewiston, construction of The Hartley Block Apartments located in downtown at 149-159 Lisbon Street is complete and 53 residential units (of 

which 39 will be affordable) have been made available. Only a few administrative tasks remain to closeout the activity.  Construction of 36 units 

at 477 Minot Ave in Auburn is well underway; construction is approximately 75% complete.  The project at 48 Hampshire St also broke ground 

this past year and will add another 53 residential apartments; construction is nearing 50%.  These projects are funded with $820,000 of HOME 

funds as well as Low Income Housing Tax Credits. 

Make Neighborhoods Safe and Walkable: The City of Auburn has made a number of efforts this past year towards making neighborhoods safe 

and walkable.  On Chestnut St, a raised crosswalk is being installed to connect the athletic field and PAL Center to the courts and playground 

across the street in the "Gully".  The parking area is also improved to provide better pedestrian flow and safety and reduce vehicle speeds.  The 

City has also commissioned a "complete streets" road design for the Library Ave area.  The design is intended to improve walkability and on-

street parking for the area in the vicinity of the Public Library.  Design is nearing the 90% phase and shall be implemented in the coming years. 

Improve Parks and Create Community Gardens: The Newbury Street Garden is now complete and continues to serve community 

gardeners.  Two gardens are now complete and the garden team has selected a location for the 3rd and final community garden. 

Improve Quality of life for Seniors : In response to the recognition that the City was likely to experience a timeliness issue, the City of Auburn 

ammended the ConPlan and Action Plan to include the expansion of the existing Senior Center located in Pettingill Park.  This large undertaking 

is at 80% complete and includes additional funds in the next program year as well. 

Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and 
explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives.  91.520(g) 
Categories, priority levels, funding sources and amounts, outcomes/objectives, goal outcome indicators, units of measure, targets, actual 



 CAPER 2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

outcomes/outputs, and percentage completed for each of the grantee’s program year goals. 

 

Goal Category Source 
/ 
Amount 

Indicator Unit of 
Measure 

Expected 
– 
Strategic 
Plan 

Actual – 
Strategic 
Plan 

Percent 
Complete 

Expected 
– 
Program 
Year 

Actual – 
Program 
Year 

Percent 
Complete 

Anti-poverty/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Public service activities 

other than 

Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
1000 1328 

       

132.80% 
263 322 

       

122.43% 

Anti-poverty/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Homeless Person 

Overnight Shelter 

Persons 

Assisted 
0 0         

Create Mixed Income 

Neighborhoods/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 
Rental units constructed 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

50 0 
         

0.00% 
63 0 

         

0.00% 

Create Mixed Income 

Neighborhoods/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Rental units 

rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

10 16 
       

160.00% 
      

Create Mixed Income 

Neighborhoods/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 2   0 2   

Create Mixed Income 

Neighborhoods/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 7   0 7   

Create Mixed Income 

Neighborhoods/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Direct Financial 

Assistance to 

Homebuyers 

Households 

Assisted 
17 15 

        

88.24% 
10 0 

         

0.00% 



 CAPER 3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Fair Housing/Aub 

Fair Housing 

and Housing 

Choice 

CDBG: 

$ 
Other Other 12 5 

        

41.67% 
2 0 

         

0.00% 

Improve Parks and 

Community 

Gardens/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Public Facility or 

Infrastructure Activities 

other than 

Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
4305 1285 

        

29.85% 
      

Improve Parks and 

Community 

Gardens/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Public service activities 

other than 

Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
0 43   0 43   

Improve Parks and 

Community 

Gardens/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 
Other Other 3 2 

        

66.67% 
      

Improve Safety & 

Efficiency of 

Housing/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 
Rental units constructed 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

50 0 
         

0.00% 
      

Improve Safety & 

Efficiency of 

Housing/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

10 20 
       

200.00% 
5 4 

        

80.00% 

Increase Owner 

Occupancy/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0     0     

Increase Owner 

Occupancy/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Direct Financial 

Assistance to 

Homebuyers 

Households 

Assisted 
25 5 

        

20.00% 
4 1 

        

25.00% 



 CAPER 4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Make Neighborhood 

Streets Safe and 

Walkable/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Public Facility or 

Infrastructure Activities 

other than 

Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
4305 2780 

        

64.58% 
4865 1390 

        

28.57% 

Make Neighborhood 

Streets Safe and 

Walkable/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 
Other Other 3000 0 

         

0.00% 
      

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Rental units 

rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

185 84 
        

45.41% 
19 21 

       

110.53% 

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 0   0 0   

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

90 40 
        

44.44% 
11 8 

        

72.73% 

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Housing for Homeless 

added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 0         

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Housing for People with 

HIV/AIDS added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 0         



 CAPER 5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Prevent Deterioration of 

Housing Stock/Auburn 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Housing Code 

Enforcement/Foreclosed 

Property Care 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

500 359 
        

71.80% 
100 57 

        

57.00% 

Prevent 

Homelessness/Auburn 
Homeless 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Public service activities 

other than 

Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
200 361 

       

180.50% 
77 79 

       

102.60% 

Prevent 

Homelessness/Auburn 
Homeless 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Tenant-based rental 

assistance / Rapid 

Rehousing 

Households 

Assisted 
125 109 

        

87.20% 
40 26 

        

65.00% 

Prevent 

Homelessness/Auburn 
Homeless 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Homeless Person 

Overnight Shelter 

Persons 

Assisted 
170 268 

       

157.65% 
0 22   

Prevent 

Homelessness/Auburn 
Homeless 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Overnight/Emergency 

Shelter/Transitional 

Housing Beds added 

Beds   0         

Prevent 

Homelessness/Auburn 
Homeless 

CDBG: 

$ / 

HOME: 

$ 

Homelessness 

Prevention 

Persons 

Assisted 
  12         

Prevent 

Homelessness/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Tenant-based rental 

assistance / Rapid 

Rehousing 

Households 

Assisted 
125 70 

        

56.00% 
35 12 

        

34.29% 

Prevent 

Homelessness/Lewiston 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Housing for Homeless 

added 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 0         



 CAPER 6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Promote Jobs and 

Development/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 

Facade 

treatment/business 

building rehabilitation 

Business 0 0         

Promote Jobs and 

Development/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 
Jobs created/retained Jobs 0 1   6 1 

        

16.67% 

Promote Jobs and 

Development/Auburn 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$ 
Businesses assisted 

Businesses 

Assisted 
10 1 

        

10.00% 
      

Support Construction of 

New Affordable 

Housing/Aub 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 
Rental units constructed 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

60 0 
         

0.00% 
110 0 

         

0.00% 

Support Construction of 

New Affordable 

Housing/Aub 

Affordable 

Housing 

HOME: 

$ 

Rental units 

rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

0 0         

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date 

 

 

Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific objectives identified in the plan, 

giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified. 

Anti-Poverty Strategy has been addressed by providing funds to two public service agencies and two city programs.  Literacy Volunteers and 

Androscoggin Head Start are crucial to the success of families who are struggling with the issues of poverty.  The Auburn Police Department 

offers a program called “Work with Me”  aimed at area high school youth to ensure they remain in school and learn important skills that can 

transition them out of generational poverty.  The Recreation Scholarship Program is funded to assist youth to attend summer camp.  The 

program makes it possible for parents to work, look for employment and better their financial situations. 

Auburn’s aging housing stock which is neglected and in disrepair especially in the target areas. We experienced a bit of a lag in rehab projects 

during the middle of the program year due to an unexpected staffing issue but the program picked up quickly in 2019.  A significant amount of 



 CAPER 7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

the CDBG rehab funds are being matched with funds from the L/A Lead Grant.  Auburn appears to be experiencing more investment in housing 

due to risre in housing costs in other areas of the state. Many of the applicants for CDBG funds are new investors looking to improve 

deteriorated propertites. 

The City addressed the safety and walkability of neighborhoods with pedestrian improvements to Chestnut St.  A raised crosswaalk was installed 

that allow visitors of the PAL Center/Pettingill Park to safely cross Chestnut St. to the courts and playground in the "Gully".  Walkability is also 

being addressed with the design commissioned for the Library St. area. 

Promoting Jobs and development has been a difficult goal to make progress on.  The City is finding the program difficult for applicants due to 

eligibilty requiirements.  Program guidelines were altered to expand eligibilty but the City still only approved one activity under this goal the past 

project year. 

Preventing homelesses was addressedd through public service providers, Tedford Housing and Safe Voices, who provides shelter for the 

homeless. 

The Senior Center Expansion will allow the existing center to better serve the growing senior population of Auburn by providing more space and 

better amenities. 

 

 



 CAPER 8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted 

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 

91.520(a)  

 CDBG HOME 

White 200 101 

Black or African American 224 13 

Asian 8 0 

American Indian or American Native 1 0 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 2 0 

Total 435 114 

Hispanic 9 4 

Not Hispanic 426 110 

 
Table 2 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds  

 

Narrative 

The total population for the city of Auburn is 22,941 and the 2017 ACS shows that 91% of the population 

is white, 4% is White/American Indian/Alaskan Native, while all other races where less than 2%. 

The analysis of CDBG Funds spent by population shows that 46% were white, 51% were black and the 

other races received 3%.  Home Funds spent by population shows that 88.6% of the funds went to white 

households/persons, 11.4% are black households/persons..  There is an increase of CDBG assistance 

going to races other than white.  Last year 59% of those assisted were white. The numbers suggest that 

the demographics for the City are changing and more minorities are living here.  The HOME funds total 

demonstrates that these minority populations may be struggling to enter into homeownership. 

 



 CAPER 9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a) 

Identify the resources made available 
Source of Funds Source Resources Made 

Available 
Amount Expended 

During Program Year 

CDBG public - federal 1,183,835 843,666 

HOME public - federal 1,494,514 472,079 

Table 3 - Resources Made Available 

 
Narrative 

 

 
Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 

Target Area Planned 
Percentage of 

Allocation 

Actual Percentage 
of Allocation 

Narrative Description 

DOWNTOWN TARGET 

AREA 40 19 

New housing construction, 

housing rehab 

Lewiston Target Areas 20 7 Housing 

NEW AUBURN TARGET 

AREA 20 6 

Community garden, housing 

rehab 

UNION STREET TARGET 

AREA 20 11 

Public facilty improvements, 

housing rehab 

Table 4 – Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 
 

Narrative 

The above chart demostrates the geographic distrubition of both CDBG and HOME funds.  In addition to 

the acvtivities listed in the chart funds CDBG funds were utilized outside of the target area for housing 

rehab projects which addressed life and safety issues or weatherization projects in single family homes, 

public services, and administration.  HOME funds are distributed city wide in both Auburn and 

Lewiston.  In Auburn, HOME funds were utilized for residential rehabilitation and the construction of 

new housing.  The nearly complete 62 Spring St is in the downtown target area, the Hampshire Street 

Project is in the Union St. target area, and the 477 Minot Ave project is not in a designated target 

area.  The nearly complete Hartley Block is in Lewiston. 



 CAPER 10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Leveraging 

Explain how federal funds  leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), 
including a description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any 
publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the 
needs identified in the plan. 

The CDBG rehab program requires a 25% match for investor owned property and is often 

combined with funds from other grants such as the Lewiston-Auburn Lead Grant, Healthy 

Homes, State of Maine Effeciency programs.  The Economic Development loan requires 50% of 

a project be privately funded, Auburn approved one loan of $25,000 which was matched with 

the owner's purchase of the building.  

 

The HOME program is leveraging $7,223,278.00 in loans and LHITC's from the State with 

$110,000 of HOME funds for 48 Hampshire St project.  477 Minot is leveraging $6,692,539 in 

loans and LHITC's from the State with $110,000 of HOME funds 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year Summary – HOME Match 

1. Excess match from prior Federal fiscal year 1,427,252 

2. Match contributed during current Federal fiscal year 7,261 

3. Total match available for current Federal fiscal year (Line 1 plus Line 2) 1,434,513 

4. Match liability for current Federal fiscal year 0 

5. Excess match carried over to next Federal fiscal year (Line 3 minus Line 4) 1,434,513 

Table 5 – Fiscal Year Summary - HOME Match Report 
 

 



 CAPER 11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

  Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 
Project No. or 

Other ID 
Date of 

Contribution 
Cash 

(non-Federal 
sources) 

Foregone 
Taxes, Fees, 

Charges 

Appraised 
Land/Real 
Property 

Required 
Infrastructure 

Site 
Preparation, 
Construction 

Materials, 
Donated labor 

Bond 
Financing 

Total Match 

1725 06/18/2019 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1727 06/20/2019 4,076 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1735 08/13/2019 2,935 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 6 – Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 

 

HOME MBE/WBE report 

Program Income – Enter the program amounts for the reporting period 

Balance on hand at begin-
ning of reporting period 

$ 

Amount received during 
reporting period 

$ 

Total amount expended 
during reporting period 

$ 

Amount expended for 
TBRA 

$ 

Balance on hand at end of 
reporting period 

$ 

0 211,311 211,311 8,847 0 

Table 7 – Program Income 
 



 CAPER 12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprises – Indicate the number and dollar value 
of contracts for HOME projects completed during the reporting period 

 Total Minority Business Enterprises White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 
American 

Indian 

Asian or 
Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-
Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Contracts 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-Contracts 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Total Women 
Business 

Enterprises 

Male 

Contracts 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 

Number 0 0 0 

Sub-Contracts 

Number 0 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 

Table 8 - Minority Business and Women Business Enterprises 

 
Minority Owners of Rental Property – Indicate the number of HOME assisted rental property owners 
and the total amount of HOME funds in these rental properties assisted 

 Total Minority Property Owners White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 

American 

Indian 

Asian or 

Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-

Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dollar 

Amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 9 – Minority Owners of Rental Property 
 



 CAPER 13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition – Indicate the number of persons displaced, the cost of 
relocation payments, the number of parcels acquired, and the cost of acquisition 

Parcels Acquired 0 0 

Businesses Displaced 0 0 

Nonprofit Organizations 

Displaced 0 0 

Households Temporarily 

Relocated, not Displaced 0 0 

Households 
Displaced 

Total Minority Property Enterprises White Non-
Hispanic Alaskan 

Native or 

American 

Indian 

Asian or 

Pacific 

Islander 

Black Non-

Hispanic 

Hispanic 

Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 10 – Relocation and Real Property Acquisition 

 
 

 
 



 CAPER 14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b) 

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the 
number and types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, 
moderate-income, and middle-income persons served. 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 75 38 

Number of Non-Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 191 29 

Number of Special-Needs households to be 

provided affordable housing units 6 0 

Total 272 67 

Table 11 – Number of Households 

 

 

 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of households supported through 

Rental Assistance 81 38 

Number of households supported through 

The Production of New Units 148 0 

Number of households supported through 

Rehab of Existing Units 43 29 

Number of households supported through 

Acquisition of Existing Units 0 0 

Total 272 67 

Table 12 – Number of Households Supported 

 

 

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting 
these goals. 

We have seen a challenge with providing assistance for Homeless households with rental assistance and 

have determined one reason is the lack of safe affordable housing.  Vacancy rates remain low, at appx 

3%. Often applicants recieve a voucher but cannot find a suitable/eligible unit for their family. 

The construction of new rental units will lessen this challenge.  The Spring Street project has begun 

leasing units and only has a few admin tasks to complete until closeout which is why new units haven't 



 CAPER 15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

been reported.  Lewiston’s Hartlety Block has also begun leasing up.  An additional 75 units are under 

construction in Auburn; 477 Minot Ave is approximately 75% complete and 48 Hampshire St is nearing 

50% completion. 

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans. 

We expect that the additional new affordable units begining to lease up will help residents be able to 

find more available housing in the coming years, which is a major issue for the TRBA program.  The 

rehabilition of exisiting housing continues to be a popular, well functioning program which we hope 

continues. 

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons 
served by each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine 
the eligibility of the activity. 

Number  of Households Served CDBG Actual HOME Actual 

Extremely Low-income 13 21 

Low-income 10 10 

Moderate-income 0 13 

Total 23 44 

Table 13 – Number of Households Served 
 

 

Narrative Information 

Auburn appears to be rebounding from the housing crisis created by the "Great Recession".  Investors 

are buying properties, rehabiliting them and leasing them up.  We beleive this is driven by an increse in 

housing costs in the Portland area.  Many people are choosing Auburn as an alternative and this is 

starting to effect costs in our area, rents are rising.  The City plans to continue its rehab program and will 

seek new affordable residential developments. 

 



 CAPER 16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) 

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending 

homelessness through: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

Auburn continues to actively work with area homeless service providers to improve coordination. 

Continuum issues are being addressed by Lewiston-Auburn Alliance for Services to the 

Homeless  (LAASH), a collaboration of 20+ social service providers, who meet monthly to coordinate 

services, create greater access to the service system, and insure that individuals receive services in an 

appropriate fashion.  LAASH determined that coordination of services and the lack of emergency 

warming centers are two of the area’s greatest needs.  

  

In 2017 Auburn developed the Staying Home Rental Assistance Program for homeless families of school 

aged children. The program is designed to help homeless families with school aged children by providing 

security deposit, monthly rental, and utility subsidies for up to 12 months.  The main goal of the 

program is to house homeless families and keep K-8 students in their current school.  The City reviewed 

10 applicants this year, and many applicants were able to find alternate forms of assistance through 

their referral to the program. 

  

The City of Lewiston’s Public Library houses a division of the Community Partnership for Protection of 

Children.  This is a drop-in resource center for people in poverty and homelessness to direct them to 

resources within the Consortium.  Lewiston and Auburn work with a number of agencies to assure that 

homeless persons are referred to appropriate housing and that they receive services.  Homeless persons 

come to the Social Services office where the Director assesses their needs.  They are then referred to 

homeless shelters for emergency resolution, then to the Housing Authority or other resources for 

permanent housing.  When emergency shelter is not available, people are referred to area motels.  The 

Social Services Director works with other service providers such as Common Ties, Safe Voices, Tri-County 

Mental Health, and Vocational Rehabilitation/DHS to help with services.   Once people are housed, the 

Social Services office may pay the rent for people with no income source until they have access to 

monthly income. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The Cities of Auburn and Lewiston worked with a non-profit housing developer, Tedford Housing, 

to develop housing for the homeless.  Each city has a supportive housing project for formerly homeless 



 CAPER 17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

persons, 10 units of family housing in Lewiston and 6 units to house individuals in Auburn.  The City of 

Auburn also provides support services to Tedford Housing and Safe Voices through its social service 

grants under the Community Development Program.  The Safe Voices grant provides support services at 

the shelter level and Tedford Housing provides support services to formerly homeless individuals living 

at its permanent housing project in Auburn. 

The Auburn Lewiston area has several shelters that do not participate as members of the Continuum of 

Care and LAASH nor do they request CDBG funding.  Hope Haven is a 34-bed emergency shelter for men, 

women and children.  The provide beds for over 300 homeless annually, provide 2,000 meals and offer 

clothing for 1,000 people.  St. Martin de Porres offers two shelters, one for men and another for 

women.  Unfortunately the three shelters mentioned here prefer not to participate in state or local 

efforts to assist the homeless, do not report on numbers yet they do provide a needed service. 

The Lewiston-Auburn Alliance for Services to the Homeless has identified the lack of a general 

emergency warming center as an immediate need to the community and have begun researching 

opportunities. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families and those who are:  likely to become homeless after 

being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care 

facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections 

programs and institutions);  and,  receiving assistance from public or private agencies that 

address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs 

Persons who are chronically homeless have access to the two supportive housing projects in either 

Auburn or Lewiston, depending on their family structure.  These are managed and operated by Tedford 

Housing and they provide a total of 16 housing units.  

A barrier identified by LAASH for persons who are homeless or near homeless is a lack of assistance to 

help pay for a security deposit for a rental unit. Both Cities operate a TBRA program to assist households 

that have become or are in danger of becoming homeless afford the initial costs of renting. 

The State of Maine has runs an initiative with their Shelter Plus Care vouchers for long-term stayers.  If a 

person is homeless 180 out of the previous 365 days, they will go to the top of the list to receive a 

voucher.  They will be utilizing the HMIS system to identify these people.  The challenge for the 

chronically homeless is the largest shelter that serves this area, Hope Haven, does not allow anyone to 

remain in the shelter more than 60 days.  

There are other services available that link the homeless to services.  However, these services are only 

available to people who have Maine Care.  Preble Street is an organization that provides case 

management, but primarily to homeless veterans. Another organization, Homeless Voice for Justice, 

works with the homeless to help them advocate for themselves, and works to address systemic type 



 CAPER 18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

issues.  With the loss of the rapid-rehousing program, the only prevention comes from the two cities' 

Security Deposit Program.  

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

Anyone who is homeless and presenting to Auburn has access to the City's resources for 

assistance.  Auburn works with a number of agencies to assure that homeless persons are referred to 

appropriate housing and that they receive services.  When a homeless person comes to Auburn, the 

Social Services Director assesses their needs. They are then referred to homeless shelters for emergency 

resolution, then to Auburn Housing Authority or other resources for permanent housing. When 

emergency shelter is not available, then people are referred to area motels. The Auburn Social Services 

Director works with other service providers such as Common Ties, Save Voices, Tri-County Mental 

Health, and Vocational Rehabilitation. 

 



 CAPER 19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) 

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing 

Auburn Housing Authority is in the process of modernizing of kitchens at the Family Development in 

what will be a multi-year process due to funding limitations. 62 Spring St is now leasing brand new 

affordable units. 

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in 

management and participate in homeownership 

Auburn Housing Authority has two resident commissioners representing the interests of lower income 

households. We continue with our down payment  savings program in which we match savings with 

interested residents’ savings. We continue to work with the City of Auburn and others to seek 

homeownership opportunities for residents ready to buy their own homes. 

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs 

Auburn Housing Authority is a high performing agency with good scores for both the Public Housing 

Assessment System (PHAS)-90 and Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP)-100. 



 CAPER 20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j) 

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as 

barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i) 

The 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan identified two barriers to affordable housing:  1) lack of investment 

and 2) lack of a building code. 

Lack of Investment: In program year 2018, the City of Auburn amended its HOMEowner Rehabilitation 

guidelines to more align the program with the increased costs of construction.  The maximum loan was 

increased and grants are now offered to cover repair/replacement of major housing systems such as 

roofs and furnaces. 

Building Codes:  For the most part, the policies and zoning ordinances in place do not restrict affordable 

housing projects to be developed.  Community Development uses its own housing standards as well as 

the Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code for rehabilitation and new construction.  Due to increasing 

awareness of the condition of housing, Auburn may explore adopting a property maintenance code to 

ensure housing remains safe and habitable.    

Zoning Ordinances:  The planning department has begun exploring the possibility of allowing “back-lots” 

which would help with in-fill and potential new housing units. 

Tax and Public Policies: 477 Minot Avenue and 48 Hampshire Street each received TIF financing 

packages from the city and should be complete and leasing up in the 2019 program year.  

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs.  91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The obstacles to meeting underserved needs are typically associated with inadequate financial 

resources, both for the City in terms of what can be offered, and from the perspective of our consumers 

who are stretched with issues of affordability.  In attempting to meet underserved needs and expand 

financial resources, the City has: 

• Joined forces with the City of Lewiston in an effort to bring in more resources to the City. A $3.4 

million dollar Lead Demonstration grant was awarded in FY2017 for lead remediation in rental 

properties.  This is especially crucial as the State of Maine has created stricter laws on lead paint 

hazards and reduced the level a child is considered poisoned from 10 ug/dl to 5 ug/dl.  An 

increase in numbers of Lead Abatement Orders has already occurred. 

• Partnered with Community Concepts, Inc. to bring weatherization resources to Auburn and 

Lewiston. 

• Offered deferred payment loans to help very low and extremely low-income homeowners with 



 CAPER 21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

their home repairs. 

• made changes to the HOMEowner Rehabilitation Assistance Program which has enabled low 

income households to make improvements in their housing.  We now offer deferred loans to 2 

different income categories - families at  0-65% of MFI qualify for a 100% deferred loan whereas 

families from 65-80% of MFI receive a loan that is 50% deferred and 50% amortized @ 0% for up 

to 30 years.   

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

Actions taken to reduce the risks of lead-based paint are:  

• The City of Lewiston took the lead in applying for a Lead Demonstration Grant in 2017 and was 

awarded $3,000,000 in Lead Hazard Demonstration Grant and $400,000 in Healthy Homes 

Funds.  The City of Auburn shares in this award.  Auburn provides inspection services, 

underwriting for Auburn properties and a CDBG funded program for owners who needed 

financial assistance in coming up with the required 10% match to the lead grant.  A 

Memorandum of Understanding was signed and the cities agreed that properties with State 

Abatement orders would take priority and all others would be on a first come first serve 

basis.  In September, 2016, the State of Maine was successful in reducing the threshold for lead 

levels in children from 10 ug/dL to 5 ug/dL.  In order to keep up with the anticipated increase in 

abatement orders the State hired 5 additional inspectors to complete inspections and enforce 

laws in properties where children have been identified to be lead poisoned.  

• Enforced RRP training requirements for contractors who provide rehabilitation improvements to 

participants of Auburn's rehabilitation programs; 

• Promoted lead awareness by providing brochures to rehab participants and their tenants. The 

Lead Grant Program provides the services of a tenant out-reach worker who works directly with 

the families and educates them on lead safety in the home as well as other healthy homes 

topics; 

• Provided a HEPA vac for Auburn residents at no cost; and 

• Completes lead clearances for units rehabilitated through the Community Development 

programs. 

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

Auburn’s Anti-Poverty Strategy is to assist low-income families by eliminating the barriers that prevent 

them from working.  This is accomplished by supporting efforts to expand or improve services that 

improve a family’s ability to meet their basic needs including child-care, transportation, and affordable 

housing. 

All of Auburn’s anti-poverty strategies have been addressed:  

Child Care:   Androscoggin Head Start and Child Care received a public service grant for services related 



 CAPER 22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

to child care services allowing parents to attend skill building classes, career courses or work.  Eighty-

two families received services. 

Reading Skills: A public service grant was awarded to improve the reading skills of Auburn residents 

through Literacy Volunteers Programs.  

Life and Job Skills: CDBG provided funds for a program partnering the Auburn Police and the School 

Departments along with the Career Center and local business owners in working with youths who are 

homeless or at-risk of a life of crime.    The students are taught job specific skills to help them transition 

to a life out of poverty. 

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

  

The City of Auburn has experienced the turnover of multiple program managers over the past couple of 

years and is actively working to develop institutional structures that have experienced disruption.  The 

Community Development Office is reviewing programs and guidelines for effectiveness and efficiencies. 

Auburn works in many collaborative efforts. Community Development staff sponsors or participates in 

several committees who meet regularly. These include Lewiston-Auburn Alliance for Services to the 

Homeless (LAASH), Healthy Neighborhoods, Lewiston-Auburn Lead Triage group, Security Deposit 

Committee, and Bridges out of Poverty Steering Committee.  Any activity sponsored by the Community 

Development Department involves public participation and outreach into the community. The linkages 

created by these processes helps to increase the communication and understanding among the City, the 

community, and various organizations and businesses in the Auburn/Lewiston area. 

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 

agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

Monthly meetings are attended by Community Development staff that help with coordination issues 

centered on housing and services.  

LAASH: The focus of Lewiston-Auburn Alliance of Services to the Homeless is to improve the manner in 

which persons/families that are homeless or at-risk of homelessness are assisted to find housing and 

appropriate services to maintain their independence.  This is done through increase collaboration, 

sharing information and strengthening cooperation among local agencies and providers; identifying gaps 

in services by evaluating the adequacy and availability of homeless resources and prioritizing homeless 

needs; increasing public awareness; and encouraging development of services, programs, and 

projects.  LAASH also reaches out to Bates College professors and students and offers them projects to 

assist us with identifying community needs.  Agencies who are not actively participants of LAASH are 

invited for presentations.  Last year FEDCAP agency gave our group an in-depth understanding on their 



 CAPER 23 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

program and how it works to help the homeless of our community. 

Lead Triage Committee:  A monthly meeting of the key players involved in all aspects of the Lead Hazard 

Control Grant.  The participants are but not exclusively Community Development Staff, Community 

Concepts Inc., Healthy Androscoggin, Auburn and Lewiston Housing Authority, State of Maine Lead 

Poisoning Prevention Program, Pine Tree Legal Authority, Code Enforcement, and staff from GHHI 

Initiative.  Reviews of the ongoing application process, abatement orders and abatement projects, 

outreach to the tenants for education, and coordination with GHHI so that all triggers that create health 

issues in residential units 

Auburn and Lewiston Housing Authority:  The Housing Authorities assists the Community Development 

Office is several ways.  They assist us with the Security Deposit Program and the Staying Home Rental 

Assistance Program by taking the lead for intake, determining eligibility and helping the clients find 

suitable homes; they are our CHDO so that we are able to meet the HOME requirements; they have a 

preference in assisting households that may become displaced by government action and they are 

actively engaged in the Auburn Lewiston Fair Housing Alliance helping us to affirmatively further fair 

housing choice. 

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the 

jurisdictions analysis of impediments to fair housing choice.  91.520(a) 

In 2013 The Cities of Auburn and Lewiston adopted a plan to address the impediments to fair housing 

choice.  The plan identified several strategies that a team from Auburn and Lewiston Community 

Development and Housing Authorities will address.  

Lack of Investment: The residential rehab programs continue to be popular programs.  The HOMEowner 

rehab program guidelines were amended to better serve the needs of qualifying applicants.  

Lead Paint Hazards:  The Lewiston Auburn Lead Hazard Reduction Grant made available $3.5 million 

dollars in grant funds.    Enforced RRP training requirements for contractors who provide rehabilitation 

improvements to participants of Auburn's rehabilitation programs; Promoted lead awareness by 

providing brochures to rehab participants and their tenants. The Lead Grant Program provides the 

services of a tenant out-reach worker who works directly with the families and educates them on lead 

safety in the home as well as other healthy homes topics 

Landlord Tenant Communication:   The Economic and Community Development Office developed a 

“Tenant’s Guide” to help assist tenants with the process of addressing housing issues.  The complaint 

process is often confusing for tenants and the guide should help clarify the steps that should be taken 

and includes contact information of different resources.  

Lack of affordable units:  62 Spring St and the Hartley Block project are accepting leases.  477 Minot Ave 

and 48 Hampshire St have broken ground and should be accepting applications for leases in 2020.   



 CAPER 24 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Housing for New Mainers:  There are multiple programs available for all households including New 

Mainers to assist with homeownership.  Coastal Enterprises offers The New Ventures Program and 

Family Development Accounts; Maine State Housing offers Advantage Downpayment Assistant Grants 

and HOME funds are offered locally for homebuyers. The households have access to traditional lenders 

who make available loan products to meet the need.  The area continues to struggle to find a lender 

who can offer Sharia-Compliant loan products. 



 CAPER 25 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230 

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance 

of the plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs 

involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning 

requirements 

 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:  Desk Monitoring is conducted for Sub-Recipient Grantees receiving CDBG 

funds.   A monthly/quarterly reporting system is designed to reduce the risk of funding an ineligible 

activity or having inadequate documentation. With each invoice, sub-recipients are required to submit 

reports of accomplishments and demographic data on beneficiaries. The reports are reviewed prior to 

payment of invoices. 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM: Monitoring of the HOME program for PY2018 consisted 

of desk monitoring of Auburn’s files. Files for new projects are monitored by the Community 

Development Manager when setting up the activity in IDIS. Files were monitored for 

completeness.  Lewiston submits invoices for reimbursement with back-up documentation attached, the 

ER record and IDIS set-up information.  

HOME RENTAL:   The HOME units in all projects were desk monitored and completed by the City of 

Auburn’s Community Development Director.  The City of Auburn experienced a staffing issue with the 

Housing Coordinator in the middle of PY2018 and experienced a setback in projects and 

inspections.  Due to this unforeseen situation Auburn was unable to make physical inspections for 

HOME rental properties but will resume for PY2019.  A majority of HOME units are managed by Auburn 

Housing Authority who employs their own inspectors as well. 

MINORITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:  There were no projects in PY2018 that involved a 

solicitation of minority and women-owned businesses.  

 

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to 

comment on performance reports. 

 



 CAPER 26 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c) 

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives 

and indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its 

experiences. 

The City has experienced some turnover in the Community Development Office which oversees the 

grants provided by HUD.  We are taking the opportunity to review programs and guidelines for efficiency 

and effectiveness and explore new ideas and potential projects. 

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) 

grants? 

No 

[BEDI grantees]  Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year. 

 

 

 



 CAPER 27 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d) 

Include the results of on-site inspections of affordable rental housing assisted under the 

program to determine compliance with housing codes and other applicable regulations  

Please list those projects that should have been inspected on-site this program year based upon 

the schedule in §92.504(d). Indicate which of these were inspected and a summary of issues 

that were detected during the inspection. For those that were not inspected, please indicate 

the reason and how you will remedy the situation. 

The City of Auburn experienced a staffing issue with the Housing Coordinator in the middle of PY2018 

and experienced a setback in projects and inspections.  Due to this unforeseen situation Auburn was 

unable to make physical inspections for HOME rental properties but will resume for PY2019.  A majority 

of HOME units are managed by Auburn Housing Authority who employs their own inspectors as well. 

Provide an assessment of the jurisdiction's affirmative marketing actions for HOME units. 

92.351(b) 

Community Development staff reviewed the Affirmative Marketing Plans and annual reports for two 

rental development projects, Vincent Square Apartments, and Webster School Apartments, all located 

in Auburn.  Rental Property Management are following due diligence to meet the requirements outlined 

in the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan for multifamily housing. 

Refer to IDIS reports to describe the amount and use of program income for projects, 

including the number of projects and owner and tenant characteristics 

Generally, program income is added to the pool of funds and is used as soon as it is received.  Project 

expenses from program income are not tracked separately from the loan pool.  The loan pool is made 

up of a new grant, prior year funds, and program income. 

HOME Program Income Received: 

              Homeowner Rehab Program:     Auburn: $40,096.40                   Lewiston: $11,548.49 

              Homebuyer Program:                  Auburn: $  51,731.67                      Lewiston:  $3,051.71 

              Security Deposit Program:          Auburn  $11,683.02                      Lewiston: $4,671.63  

Program income was used for 1 Homebuyer activity that assisted 1 white household which 

was  moderately low income, as well as on a special project 68 Dartmouth St, and the new rental 

development at 62 Spring St. The TBRA program assisted 29 households of which 16 were extremely 

low, 9 were very low, 4 were moderate; 25 were white, 3 were black households, and 1 was other multi-



 CAPER 28 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

racial. 

Describe other actions taken to foster and maintain affordable housing.  91.220(k) (STATES 

ONLY: Including the coordination of LIHTC with the development of affordable housing).  

91.320(j) 

Our CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program is key to supporting our goal of preventing the 

deterioration of housing units.  The housing stock is old and lack of investment over the years is 

prevalent in our target areas.  By offering grants and forgivable loans we have encouraged more 

investment.  The program requires that rents be at the Fair Market rates and any vacant units must be 

rented to low income households.  Also, Auburn developed its own Housing Standards which are more 

stringent than Housing Quality Standards.  Rehabbed units will meet the standards when projects are 

complete. 

  

The Auburn Consortium offers HOME funds to non-profit and for-profit housing developers to construct 

affordable housing units.  Since the HOME funds are a less significant part of the financing in a 

development package, HOME resources generally are the leveraged funds for more substantial dollars 

through Maine Housing’s Low Income Housing Tax Credit program or other federal housing production 

programs.  All of Auburn’s and most of Lewiston’s HOME supported rental developments have 

benefitted from the partnership with Maine Housing.  Without Maine Housing, there would be no new 

affordable new developments.  Also, Auburn has been open to providing Housing TIF’s to foster the 

development of affordable rental projects. 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    November 4, 2019 
 
Author:  Brandon Chaloux, License Specialist 
 
Subject:  Mass Gathering Application – New Year’s Eve Auburn 
 
Information:   
The organizers of New Years Auburn have applied for their Mass Gathering Permit. City Ordinance states the following: 
 
Sec. 14-252. - Clerk's notification to council.  
As soon as the city clerk or designee receives an application to hold a mass gathering, the clerk shall give public notice by 
notifying the city council. Such notification shall appear as a formal communication on the agenda of the next regularly 
scheduled council meeting.  
 
A Mass Outdoor Gathering is defined by ordinance as any gathering held outdoors with the intent to attract the 
continued attendance of 1,000 or more persons for two or more hours. 
 
The public hearing and vote will occur at November 18, 2019 City Council meeting.   

 

City Budgetary Impacts: This event is already budgeted, any additional from fundraising. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Acknowledge communication 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This is an event that will take place in Auburn annually. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
None 













 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 4, 2019  Orders: 111-09162019 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewal  
 
 
Information:  This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. Reminder 
letters and applications were sent out 08/08/2019. Inspections have been made. Council approval is required for 
renewal of these licenses. Because this is a renewal, it does not require a public hearing but the Council can accept 
public input if they wish to do so.  
 
Title 30-A, Sec. 3754 states “Municipal officers or county commissioners, as provided for in section 3753, shall hold a 
public hearing before granting a permit to establish a new automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or 
junkyard and may hold public hearings annually regarding the relicensing of these facilities”.  
 
Don’s No Preference Towing of L/A, Inc., dba Morris Auto Parts, 940 Washington St. North 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council consider approval of the renewal application with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The licensee shall contact the City by June 15, 2020 after spring high waters recede to 
schedule a site review by boat or canoe.  Clean up visible materials on the riverbank and in 
the river by July 30, 2020.   

2. 2. Install permanent 1% flood plain line markers at the floodplain line by 11/4/2019.  Staff 
has identified two appropriate marker locations shown in the staff report that will need to 
be painted with bright colored paint and maintained for visibility by junkyard staff.  If Mr. St 
Germain disagrees with the staff determined locations, he could choose to hire a surveyor 
to dispute the exact line location at his cost.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: The annual renewals were placed on the 9/16/2019 agenda. This one was postponed 
until the meeting of 10/7/2019.  It was postponed again until this meeting of November 4, 2019 to work on meeting the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Clean up visible materials on the riverbank and in the river. (High water, need to address next summer) 
2. Install permanent flood plain line markers at the floodplain line. (Agreed as of 11/1/2019) 
3. Remove any remaining vehicles with fluids from the 1% floodplain. (Done as of 11/1/2019) 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:               
 

Attachments:  
1. Application 
2. Inspection Memo – David O’Connell (Fire Department) 
3. Inspection Memo #1– Eric Cousens (Economic and Community Development) 
4. Inspection Memo #2-Eric Cousens (Economic and Community Development) 
5. Order 111-09162019  

 











Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 111-09162019 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto 
Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Don’s No Preference Towing of L/A, Inc., dba Morris Auto Parts, 
940 Washington St. North. 
 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 

  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

To:   Brandon Chaloux, Licensing Specialist / Deputy City Clerk 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 

Re: 2019 Junkyard Follow-up Morris Auto Parts License Inspection  

Date: November 1, 2019 

A Follow up inspection on 11/1/19 revealed that there were four cars with fluids in the floodplain area 
near the line that was the subject of a disagreement between staff and Mr. St. Germain at the previous 
inspection.  Part of the disagreement stemmed from the fact that previously agreed upon markers were 
too easy to move.  Mr. St. Germain has cleaned the area that was needed to identify permanent  
floodplain line markers that will not be easily moveable.   
 

With the recent rains it will not be possible inspect the riverbank and shoreline by boat before colder 

weather.   

Staff recommends the City Council consider approval of the renewal application with the following 

conditions:  

1. The licensee shall contact the City by June 15, 2020 after spring high waters recede to schedule a site 

review by boat or canoe.  Clean up visible materials on the riverbank and in the river by July 30, 2020.   

2. Install permanent 1% 

flood plain line markers 

at the floodplain line.  

Staff has identified two 

appropriate marker 

locations shown to the 

right that will need to be 

painted with bright 

colored paint and 

maintained for visibility 

by junkyard staff.  If Mr. 

St Germain disagrees 

with the staff 

determined locations, he 

could choose to hire a surveyor to dispute the exact line location at his cost.   



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date: November 4, 2019  Ordinance: 14-10212019 
 
Author: Megan Norwood, City Planner II 
 

Subject: Proposed Zoning Map Amendment at 965 Minot Avenue 
 
Information: John Petrocelli of Petro’s Ace Hardware is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment to PID 217-002 
to change a portion of the parcel abutting the rear of PID 207-013 from Suburban Residential (SR) to General 
Business II (GBII) to expand the commercial zone at his business at 965 Minot Avenue. The purpose of the map 
amendment is to expand the commercial zone for Petro’s to allow yard delivery and loading trucks to exit onto 
Garfield Road to more safely enter Minot Avenue. The reason the 2.35 acre configuration was requested for 
the zoning map change is to limit the amount of area of the parent parcel proposed for rezoning to only the 
space necessary for egress. The Owner also proposes to keep a heavily wooded buffer on each side of the 
proposed future egress onto Garfield Road.  
 
The Planning Board held a Public Hearing and made a favorable recommendation to City Council at their 
October 8, 2019 meeting. The Planning Board also recommended changing the leftover triangular shaped 
portion of the parcel from Suburban Residential to Urban Residential to match the abutting Zoning District as 
well as updating the Future Land Use Map so the triangular shaped portion of the parcel matches the abutting 
Future Land Use Designation of Business Expansion Transition (please see attached maps for further 
clarification). 
 
As discussed in the Staff Report, one of the primary tests associated with a Zoning District change is its 
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. The current Comprehensive Plan shows the area proposed for 
rezoning as low-moderate density residential development which states that new development should be 
designed to minimize the number of vehicular access points to existing collector or other through roads. The 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designates the current GBII area as planned commercial development. A small 
rear expansion of the GBII area would enable Petro’s and the neighboring businesses to grow in a more unified 
way which is the intent of a planned commercial designation in the comprehensive plan.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff believes this change will provide an opportunity for expanding the business 
and could allow for safer vehicular and delivery access on Garfield Road, we recommend the City Council vote 
in favor of the Planning Boards recommended Zoning Map changes from Suburban Residential to General 
Business II and Urban Residential, respectively and Future Land Use Map changes from Low-Moderate Density 
Residential Development to Planned Commercial Development and Business Expansion Transition, 
respectively (please see attached maps for clarification). 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: We received a request from CC Titus to place this on a CC Workshop, with a 
copy of a petition. An introduction to the Zoning Map amendment was discussed at the August 19, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. On September 9, 2019, the Council voted to refer this to the Planning Board. The Planning 
Board voted in favor of the map amendments at the October 8, 2019 meeting. Passage of the first reading was 
on 10/21/2019. Public hearing and second reading to be held at the 11/4/2019 meeting. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:      
 

Attachments:  
- October 08, 2019 Planning Board Staff Report  
- Petition/Council Agenda Request Form 
- Future Land Use Map Changes 
- PID #217-002 Changes (Zoomed Out View) 
- Current vs. Proposed Zoning Map Changes 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Economic & Community Development 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

 

 

To:  Auburn Planning Board 

From:  Megan Norwood, City Planner II, Audrey Knight, AICP City Planner 

Re:  Proposed rezoning of 2.35 acres of land, located generally at 965 Minot Avenue (PID: 217-002),  

  from Suburban Residential to General Business II, extending the existing frontage zoning to the  

  rear of Petro’s Ace Hardware.  

Date:  October 8, 2019 

 

 

I.  PROPOSAL – John Petrocelli of Petro’s Ace 

Hardware is seeking a Zoning Map amendment to 

PID 217-002 to change a portion of the parcel 

abutting the rear of PID 207-013 from Suburban 

Residential (SR) to General Business II (GBII) to 

expand the commercial zone at his business at 965 

Minot Avenue.  

 

The zoning amendment request would allow yard 

delivery and loading trucks to exit onto Garfield 

Road in order to more safely enter Minot Avenue.  

The configuration of the SR Zoning Map change is 

designed to limit the amount of area of the parent 

parcel proposed for rezoning to only the space 

necessary for egress. Figure 2 shows a small buffer 

area remaining zoned SR (triangle shaped area).

 
 

Delivery trucks currently pull into the site, Y-Turn in a very tight space, then exit back onto Minot 

Avenue. This new egress would enable drive through movement and additional safety. It would also 

reduce noise from backup alarms, reduce emissions and provide a more efficient design for goods and 

movement. The lot frontage on Garfield Road would be 100 feet wide, with a proposed access drive of 

less than 30 feet wide (20-24 feet is required).  Mr. Petrocelli proposes to keep a heavily wooded buffer 

on each side. A paved apron at the exit to Garfield Road would likely be reclaim.  



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

II. ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENTS 

DIVISION 2.  

A. Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance or Zoning Map 

Sec. 60-1445. - Purpose. 

Amendments to the zoning ordinance, including the zoning map, may be initiated by the Planning Board 

on its own initiative or upon request by the City Council or by a petition signed by not less than 25 

registered voters of the city.  (Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 8.1A) 

 

John Petrocelli provided a petition to CC Titus and asked to place this on the City Council 

Workshop. At the August 19, 2019 meeting, the Council asked the Planning Board to hold a  

public hearing and provide a recommendation to the Council. The next step after the Planning Board 

process will be for the Council to hold a workshop (if desired), two readings and a public hearing for 

public adoption or denial. 

 

B. Comprehensive Plan 

One of the primary tests associated with a Zoning District change is its conformance with the 

Comprehensive Plan.  The current Comprehensive Plan shows the subject area that is proposed for 

rezoning as “Low-Moderate Density Residential Development” (the hatched area below) which states: 

“new development should be designed to minimize the number of vehicular access points to 

existing collector or other through roads.”  

 

The Future Land Use Plan Map designates the General Business II zoning district area along Minot 

Avenue as “Planned Commercial Development” (the pink area below): 

“new development, redevelopment, and substantial expansions should be subject to an enhanced 

set of development and design standards to assure that this area evolves as an attractive gateway. 

These standards should establish a landscaped buffer strip along the street, limit the types of 

activities that can occur between the front of the building and the street, and screen all service 

and storage visibility from the street.” 

 

 
 

 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 

It is important to note that the Future Land Use Plan is not a Zoning Map. It is intended to show, in a 

general sense, the desired pattern of future land use and development. Often in the planning process the 

existing land use dictates that a zoning pattern remain, despite the future land use map, or the desired 

long-term vision for an area. In this case the light purple area in figure 6 is Industrial Zoning which 

reflects the large area occupied by American Cement and the Trucking repair services that were in place 

prior to the adoption of the Future Land Use Map. The red area in figure 6 is the General Business II 

zoning district. Petro’s Ace Hardware and the Backwoods Snow Boards & Skateboards retail stores 

occupy the corner of Garfield Road and Minot Avenue, and are currently owned by brothers. This small 

rear expansion of the GBII zoning district would enable these two businesses to consolidate parking, 

pedestrian, auto, delivery and truck circulation into a more unified development as they expand and 

redevelop, which is the intent of the planned commercial designation in the comprehensive plan. 

 

Because this is a map change of 2.35 acres from residential to commercially zoned land, consideration of 

neighboring residential impacts is of primary consideration. The applicant purchased parcel 217-002 and 

therefore can appropriately screen, retain and distance activity from future potential homes. The hardware 

store does not operate evening hours, closing at 5pm. While the zoning pattern may outlast this business, 

the configuration could allow the eventual use of the Garfield Road driveway to become an entrance to 

residential development, and an overall better integration of commercial and residential activity if 

designed well. 

 

Garfield Road, opposite the proposed rezoning, is also zoned GBII and designated Planned Commercial 

Development. Four of the adjacent residential homes along Minot Avenue are also zoned GBII, three 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

remain in residential use, with a live/work business “Quiltessentials” occupying the corner of Amherst 

Street and Minot Avenue.  Urban and Suburban Residential zoning and use extends behind and past 

Rafnell Street, before returning to commercial zoning along Minot Avenue.  

 

 

C. Zoning Amendment Process   

 

Sec. 60-1446. - Proposal made in writing. 

Each proposal to change the zoning map shall be made in writing and shall explicitly state the 

nature, extent, location and purpose of the map change proposed and shall be accompanied by a black 

line print of a diagram drawn to scale showing and stating clearly the dimensions in feet, the area, 

metes and bounds of the land proposed for a change and a sketch or other explicit identification of 

the general location and relationship of such land to some major neighborhood or other recognizable 

geographic segment of the city. Petitions shall be filed not less than 30 days prior to a regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 8.1B) 

 

Sec. 60-1447. - Change of text. 

Each proposal to change any zoning ordinance text (other than a change of zoning district name or 

zoning boundary description) shall include the wording then current, the words of change, the wording 

if so amended and a statement of the reasons for such change, showing how such change would affect 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare. 

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 8.1C) 

 

Sec. 60-1448. - Submittal of completed petition. 

Within 45 days of submittal of a completed petition to amend the Zoning Ordinance text or map, 

the planning board shall hold a public hearing thereon. 

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 8.1D) 

 

DEPARTMENT REVIEW –  

a. Police – There have been 2 accidents on Minot Avenue near the intersection since 2016, which 

is not of concern at this time.  

b. Auburn Water and Sewer – No comments. 

c. Fire Department – No comments. 

d. Engineering – No comments. 

e. Public Services – No comments. 

f. Economic and Community Development – Staff believes this change provides an opportunity for 

orderly expansion of the business and could allow safer vehicular and delivery access by not 

concentrating all traffic to Minot Avenue.   

    

The small isolated triangle currently mapped to be left in the SR zone, may be more 

appropriately zoned to the neighboring Urban Residential zone. 

 

III. PLANNING BOARD ACTION – This proposal requires the Planning Board to make a 

recommendation of the proposed Zoning District change to the City Council in accordance with 

Section 60-1445. Where this is a change to the Zoning District map and not the Zoning Ordinance 

language, the Planning Board does not have to review a change of text in accordance 60-1447.  

 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS – Staff recommends the Planning Board find that the proposed 

zone change allows the business and property to more easily implement the intent of the 

comprehensive plan to promote well planned and designed commercial frontage. A change from 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Suburban Residential zoning to General Business II while expanding commercial development into a 

residentially designated area would not appear to compromise future residential development and 

may serve to reduce some noise and emissions currently produced by the existing circulation 

configuration.  As the applicant proposes to provide an extensive buffer on all sides of residential 

land, including the triangle remainder, the proposed change could provide long-term protection that 

currently does not exist. 

 

Suggested Motion: I make a motion to recommend approval to the City Council to change the Zoning 

District for the 2.35 acres delineated by the applicant, otherwise known as a portion of PID 217-002, from 

Suburban Residential to General Business II, and further recommend amending the General Plan Land 

Use Map to Planned Commercial Development. The Planning Board further recommends changing the 

zoning and future land use classification of the remainder triangular portion of parcel 217-002 to Urban 

Residential and Low-Moderate Density Residential respectively. 

 

 

 
__________________________      ____________________________ 
Megan Norwood        Audrey Knight, AICP 

City Planner II        City Planner 























Garfield Rd

MinotAv

Ce
da
rw
oo

d 
Rd

Leavitt St

N
ickerson

Av

Rafnell St

Am
herstSt

An
ita
Av

StevensMillRd

H
eath

Ln G
arfield
Park

Pl

Swett Av

Alderwood R
d

H
otel Rd

St
er
lin
g 
Rd

Beech St

Sprucew
ood Rd

Oxford St

CarsonSt

BelgradeAv

CooperLn

H
ow

e St

Stevens M
ill Park Rd

Bo
ul
de
rD

r

Parcel
#217-002

0 250 500Feet

1 inch equals  500 feet¯
AG - Agriculture and Resource Protection

GB - General Business

GB II - General Business II

ID - Industrial

SR - Suburban Residential

UR - Urban Residential

60 Court St
Auburn, ME  04210

Path: D:\GISProjects\RM\DataDevelopment\ZoningUpdates\MapChanges\ZoningMapChanges\ZoningMapChanges.aprx
Date Saved: 10/15/2019 5:49 PM



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 14-10212019 
 

 
 
Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby adopts the proposed amendment to the Official 
Zoning Map to rezone a 2.4 Acre portion of PID 217-002 from Suburban Residential to General 
Business II and a 1.4 Acre portion from Suburban Residential to Urban Residential (as attached).  
 
Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby adopts the proposed amendment to the Future Land 
Use Map to rezone a 2.4 Acre portion of PID 217-002 from Low-Moderate Density Residential 
Development to Planned Commercial Development and a 1.4 Acre portion of PID 217-002 from 
Low-Moderate Density Residential to Business Expansion Transition (as attached).  



Minot Av

Beech St

Am
herst St

Oxford St

G
arfield

Park
Pl

Carso
nSt

Garfield Rd

St
er
lin
g 
Rd 2.4 Acres

1.4 Acres

Minot Av

Beech St

Am
herst St

Oxford St

G
arfield

Park
Pl

Carso
nSt

Garfield Rd

St
er
lin
g 
Rd 2.4 Acres

1.4 Acres

Current Zoning

Proposed Zoning

0 150 300Feet

1 inch equals  300 feet

¯
GB II - General Business II

ID - Industrial

SR - Suburban Residential

UR - Urban Residential

954 Minot - Proposed Changes

60 Court St
Auburn, ME  04210

Path: D:\GISProjects\RM\DataDevelopment\ZoningUpdates\MapChanges\ZoningMapChanges\ZoningMapChanges.aprx
Date Saved: 10/15/2019 5:49 PM



Minot Av

Beech St

Am
herst St

Oxford St

G
arfield

Park
Pl

Carso
nSt

Garfield Rd

St
er
lin
g 
Rd 2.4 Acres

1.4 Acres

Minot Av

Beech St

Am
herst St

Oxford St

G
arfield

Park
Pl

Carso
nSt

Garfield Rd

St
er
lin
g 
Rd 2.4 Acres

1.4 Acres

Current Future Land Use Map

Proposed Future Land Use Map

0 150 300Feet

1 inch equals  300 feet

¯
LMoDRD - Low-Moderate
Density Residential
Development

PCD - Planned Commercial
Development

GBD - General Business
Development

BXT - Business Expansion
Transition

954 Minot - Proposed
Changes

60 Court St
Auburn, ME  04210

Path: D:\GISProjects\RM\DataDevelopment\ZoningUpdates\MapChanges\ZoningMapChanges\ZoningMapChanges.aprx
Date Saved: 10/15/2019 5:49 PM



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   11/4/2019    Ordinance: 13-10212019 
 
Author:   Holli Olivier, Manager – Health & Social Services 
 

Subject:   Adoption of Appendices for General Assistance, Effective 10/1/2019 through 9/30/2020 
 
Information:  I’m seeking the approval of the new General Assistance Appendix A (the GA overall maximums), Appendix 
B (the food maximums), Appendix C (Lewiston / Auburn MSA Rental Maximums), and Appendix H (the funeral 
maximums).  Once the appendices A-C and H are adopted, they will replace the FY 18/19 maximums for those 
appendices 
 
These maximums are established as a matter of State law based on certain federal and HUD fair market values.  These 
appendices are filed with the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with Title 22, M.R.S.A. § 
4305(4). 
 
**By adopting the new appendices A-C and H, the program will be in compliance and receive the 70% reimbursement 
from the State** 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The overall maximums (Appendix A) is an average increase of $79.00 per household per month.  
The food maximums (Appendix B) is an average increase approximately $5.00 per individual per month.  The housing 
maximums (Appendix C) is an average increase of $71.00 per household per month.  And the funeral maximums 
(Appendix H) in an average increase of $295.00 per individual. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Approval of changes to the General Assistance Appendices A-C & H as required by State 
statue and ordinance.  Public hearing and passage of first reading:  10/21/19.  Second reading:  11/4/2019. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  This is a yearly approval needed by council when changes are made to the appendices 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

 
Attachments:  Health & Social Services Budget FY19/20 New Maximums  
Appendix A, Overall Maximums 
Appendix B, Food Maximums 
Appendix C, Housing Maximums 
Appendix H, Funeral Maximums 
Adoption form for 19-20 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 13-10152019 
 

Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance 
Annual Adjustment of Maximum Benefits 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, 
Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual Adjustment of Maximum 
Benefits to incorporate the following maximum levels of assistance to be effective on 
and after October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020, as follows: 
 
Sec. 24-23. - Annual adjustment of maximum benefits.  
(a)   Each year the Maine Municipal Association provides for the city three appendices providing 

maximum benefits applicable for the period beginning October 1 and ending September 30 
as mandated by state law and based on certain federal values effective on October 1 of each 
year, as follows:  

(1)  Appendix A, a listing of overall maximum levels of general assistance relating to all 
Maine municipalities.  

(2)   Appendix B, a listing of maximum levels of assistance for food.  

(3)   Appendix C, a listing of maximum levels for heated and unheated housing.  

(4) Appendix H, a listing of funeral maximums, including burials and cremations. 

(b)  The portion of these annual appendices applicable to the city, as adopted each year by the 
city council, are made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth herein and a copy 
thereof is available in the office of the city clerk.  

Editor's note— The appendices referred to in this section are not codified but are available in 
the office of the city clerk.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

 
 
 

       Appendix A – GA Overall Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 
TOTAL NUMBER IN HOUSEHOLD:         1  2      3  4       5 

Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, Lisbon, 
Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic Falls, Minot, 
Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 
725 

 
783 

 
1,007 

 
1,265 

 
1,606 

*Add $75.00 for each additional person* 
 

       Appendix B – Food Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 
Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 
U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2019, those amounts are: 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
   

1 45.12 194 
2 82.56 355 
3 118.37 509 
4 150.23 646 
5 178.60 768 
6 214.19 921 
7 236.74                        1,018 
8 270.70 

 
                       1,164 
 

**Note:  For each additional person, add $144 per month. 
 

       Appendix C – Rental Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2019 – 9/30/2020 
 

Lewiston/Auburn  MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 133 574 156 671 

1 137 591 167 719 

2 177 763 216 929 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

3 224 965 273 1,174 

4 288 1,240 348 1,497 

APPENDIX H – FUNERAL MAXIMUMS 
Effective 10/01/2019 – 9/30/2020 

 
Burial Maximums 

 

The maximum amount of general assistance granted for the purpose of burial is $1,475.  

Additional costs may be allowed by the GA administrator, where there is an actual cost, for: 

 

• The wholesale cost of a cement liner if the cemetery by-laws require one; 

• The opening and closing of the grave site; and 

• A lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery.  If the municipality is able 

to provide a cemetery lot in a municipally owned cemetery or in a cemetery 

under municipal control, the cost of the cemetery lost in any other cemetery 

will not be paid by the municipality 

 

The municipality’s obligation to provide funds for burial purposes is limited to a reasonable 

calculation of the funeral director’s direct costs, not to exceed the maximum amounts of 

assistance described in this section.  Allowable burial expenses are limited to: 

 

• Removal of the body from a local residence or institution 

• A secured death certificate or obituary 

• Embalming 

• A minimum casket 

• A reasonable cost for transportation 

• Other reasonable and necessary specified direct costs, as itemized by the 

funeral director and approved by the municipal administrator 

 

 

Cremation Maximums 

 

The maximum amount of assistance granted for a cremation shall be $1,025.  Additional costs 

may be allowed by the GA administrator where there is an actual cost, for: 

 

• A cremation lot in the least expensive section of the cemetery 

• A reasonable cost for a burial urn not to exceed $55 

• Transportation costs borne by the funeral director at a reasonable rate per mile 

for transporting the remains to and from the cremation facility. 





 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  November 4, 2019  Order:  125-10212019 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Appointing Kelsey Earle to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee (LATC) for a three-year term. 
 
Information:  Passage of this order would confirm the appointment of Kelsey Earle, Executive Assistant to City Manager, 
to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee. The seat was previously held by the former Executive Assistant Jody Durisko.  
 
This was on the October 21, 2019 agenda and was postponed until tonight’s meeting. Kelsey Earle has since asked that 
we withdraw her name. It appears on the November 4th agenda because Council voted to postpone this item until the 
meeting of November 4th. Based on that, staff recommends making a motion to postpone this item indefinitely, killing 
the motion. If that happens, the vacancy will be posted and will follow the Appointment Process adopted by the City 
Council. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends a motion to postpone this item indefinitely which will kill the motion. A 
second and vote would be needed. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This was on the October 21, 2019 agenda and was postponed until tonight’s meeting.  

 
 

City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

 
Attachments: Order 125-10212019 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 125-10212019 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints Kelsey Earle, to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit 
Committee (LATC) for a three year term ending July 1, 2022. 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: November 4, 2019   Order:  131-11042019 
 
Author: Brandon Chaloux, License Specialist   
 
Subject: Liquor License and Special Amusement request for ALDZGD Inc., DBA Firehouse Grill   
 
Information: ALDZGD Inc., DBA Firehouse Grill, an existing business under new ownership, located at 47 Broad 

Street, applied for a Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit. Police, Fire, and Code have completed the 

necessary inspections and have granted approval.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Public hearing and recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:        
 

Attachments:  
 
Application 
Public notice 
Order 



























CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held by the Auburn City Council on Monday, 

November 4, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in the 

Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider the Liquor 

License and Special Amusement applications for: 

 

ALDZGD Inc., DBA Firehouse Grill 

47 Broad Street, Auburn, Maine 

 

All interested persons may appear and will be given the opportunity to be 

heard before final action is taken. 

 

  

 

 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 131-11042019 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Liquor License and Special Amusement 

permit for ALDZGD Inc., DBA Firehouse Grill located at 47 Broad Street, Auburn, Maine. 
  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   November 4, 2019 Orders: 132-11042019, 133-11042019, 134-11042019 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Ethics Committee Appointments 
 
Information:  It was recently discovered that the Ethics Committee Appointments were not made following proper 
protocol. In error, the appointments were made by the City Council when the Ordinance states that two regular voting 
members and one alternate member are appointed by the Mayor and appointed by the City Council and one regular 
voting member and one alternate is appointed by the School Committee Chair and confirmed by the School Committee. 
 
The Mayor would like to appoint the following members, to be confirmed by a vote of the City Council. 
 
Regular Voting Members 
Jim Pross (3 year term) 
Leonard Kimble (1 year term) 
 
Alternate Member 
Jared Doyle (3 year term) 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Confirm the appointments of the Mayor 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:      
 

Attachments: Ordinance on Ethics and Conflicts of Interest, Orders 132-11042019 – 135-11042019 
 
 



DIVISION 2. - ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST[5]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (5) ---  

State Law reference— Conflicts of interest, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2605.  

Sec. 2-109. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Financial involvement means any existing (or current efforts toward achieving) ownership or 
investment interest, contract right, significant customer relationship, or employment relationship of or with 
a public official or a person with whom the public official has a personal relationship.  

Municipal board means the city council, the school committee, the planning board, the board of 
zoning appeals, the civil service commission and the board of assessment review.  

Participation in a matter means action by a public official to vote, decide, deliberate, influence or 
direct others in regard to matters currently before or anticipated as coming before a municipal board, or 
which involve the operation of municipal government or the school system.  

Personal relationship means any family, affectional or social relationship that is characterized by one 
or more of the following:  

(1)  Persons who are husband and wife, or parent and child.  

(2)  Persons who share a physical intimacy with each other.  

(3)  Persons who acknowledge an ongoing romantic relationship with each other.  

(4)  Persons who live together in the same residence.  

(5)  Persons who intermingle their financial assets without an accounting of separate ownership 
interests.  

Public official means:  

(1)  Any person holding an elected or appointed position with a municipal board;  

(2)  The city manager;  

(3)  The assistant city manager;  

(4)  Directors of municipal and school system departments;  

(5)  The city purchasing agent/deputy finance director;  

(6)  The superintendent of schools;  

(7)  The assistant superintendent of schools; and  

(8)  School principals.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.2) 

Sec. 2-110. - Policy; purpose and intent of division; adoption of additional standards.  



(a)  It is the policy of the city that the proper operation of democratic government requires that public 
officials be independent, impartial and responsible to the citizens, that public office not be used for 
personal gain, and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its municipal government. The 
purpose and intent of this division is to promote the objective of protecting the integrity of the 
government of the city against actual or reasonably perceived conflicts of interest without creating 
unnecessary barriers to public service.  

(b)  This division shall not prevent the city council, the school committee, the city manager or the 
superintendent of schools from adopting additional procedures and employment standards intended 
to prevent the exercise or appearance of improper influence or bias in the conduct of government 
business.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.1) 

Sec. 2-111. - Ethics panel established; membership; powers and duties.  

(a)  Established; membership. There shall be established an ethics panel consisting of three regular 
voting members and two alternate members. Two regular voting members and one alternate 
member of the ethics panel shall be appointed by the mayor with approval of a majority of the 
members of the city council, and one regular voting member and one alternate member of the ethics 
panel shall be appointed by the chair of the school committee with approval of a majority of the 
members of the school committee. A regular voting member or alternate member of the ethics panel 
may not hold any other city or school department office or position or be a member of any board or 
commission to which the city council or school committee has appointing authority.  

(b)  Term of members; chair. The regular voting members of the ethics panel shall be appointed to 
staggered three-year terms. When the first appointments are made, one member shall be appointed 
by the mayor to a three-year term, one member shall be appointed by the chair of the school 
committee to a two-year term, and one member shall be appointed by the mayor to a one-year term. 
The mayor annually shall appoint one of the regular voting members to serve as chair of the ethics 
panel. Alternate members shall be appointed to three-year terms.  

(c)  Role of alternate members. Alternate members of the ethics panel may participate and vote in ethics 
panel proceedings if a regular voting member is incapable or unavailable to serve in regard to a 
particular referral or is disqualified from participation because of a conflict of interest. The alternate 
member designated shall be selected by the chair of the ethics panel.  

(d)  Powers and duties. The ethics panel shall have the authority to issue advisory opinions on 
questions relating to conflicts of interest and the incompatibility of employment positions.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.3) 

Sec. 2-112. - Conflicts of interest generally.  

(a)  Standard of conduct. A public official shall refrain from participation in a matter when there exists an 
actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflict of interest arising from a personal relationship or a 
financial involvement that would cause a reasonable person to believe that the public official cannot 
act in his official capacity without self-interest or bias.  

(b)  Referral of matters to ethics panel. When a public official does not voluntarily refrain from 
participation in a matter and there is a question as to the existence of a conflict of interest under the 
standard set forth in subsection (a) of this section, the matter may be referred to the ethics panel for 
its advisory opinion as follows:  

(1)  A public official may refer to the ethics panel the question of whether he has an actual, 
potential or reasonably perceived conflict of interest;  



(2)  Two or more members of the city council, the school committee or other municipal board may 
refer to the ethics panel the question of whether another member of that body, or a public 
official who serves under the authority of that body, has an actual, potential or reasonably 
perceived conflict of interest; or  

(3)  A registered voter within the city may request an advisory opinion from the ethics panel 
regarding whether an elected or appointed public official who serves on a municipal board has 
an actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflict of interest. Such request shall be made on 
forms available from the city clerk and shall be endorsed by the signatures of 25 registered 
voters within the city.  

(c)  Ethics panel determination. The ethics panel shall determine whether the public official should 
refrain from participation in a matter because of the actual, potential or reasonably perceived 
existence of a conflict of interest arising from a personal relationship or a financial involvement that 
would cause a reasonable person to believe that the public official cannot act in his official capacity 
without self-interest or bias.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.4)  

State Law reference— Conflicts of interest, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2605. 

Sec. 2-113. - Conduct relative to municipal contracts.  

No municipal officer, employee or agent shall solicit or accept any gratuity or favor or anything of 
monetary value from any contractor or potential contractor with the city relative to the procurement of any 
supplies, equipment, construction or other services with municipal, state or federal grant funds. In addition 
to any other penalties which may be provided by law, any municipal officer, employee or agent who 
violates this section shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, including, in the case of an officer, 
removal from office; in the case of an employee, suspension or discharge from employment; and in the 
case of an agent, termination of such agency.  

(Code 1967, § 1-2.1) 

Sec. 2-114. - Incompatible employment positions.  

(a)  Standard of conduct.  

(1)  Generally. A public official, other than the city manager or the superintendent of schools, who is 
a municipal or school department employee shall not hold a supervisory position, or be senior in 
the chain of command, to an individual with whom he has a personal relationship or a financial 
involvement (other than the municipal or school system employment relationship), unless:  

a.  The relationship is disclosed by the public official to the city manager or superintendent of 
schools, whoever is the appropriate senior administrative officer;  

b.  The city manager or superintendent of schools approves a management plan that is 
designed to prevent favoritism or any other improper influence in connection with the 
employment relationship and that provides ongoing oversight by a person not subordinate 
to either of the individuals who have the personal relationship or financial involvement; and  

c.  The city manager or superintendent of schools reports to the city council or the school 
committee, whichever is the appropriate legislative body, the existence of the potential 
incompatibility of employment positions and the establishment of a management plan to 
address the potential incompatibility.  

(2)  City manager and superintendent of schools. Neither the city manager nor the superintendent 
of schools shall hold a supervisory position, or be senior in the chain of command, to an 



individual with whom he has a personal relationship or financial involvement (other than the 
municipal or school system employment relationship), unless:  

a.  The relationship is disclosed to the city council or school committee, whichever is the 
appropriate legislative body, by the city manager or superintendent of schools; and  

b.  The legislative body establishes a management plan that is designed to prevent favoritism 
or any other improper influence in connection with the employment relationship and that 
provides ongoing oversight by a person not subordinate to the city manager or 
superintendent of schools.  

(b)  Referral of matters to ethics panel. The city manager, the superintendent of schools, or a majority of 
the members of the city council or the school committee may request an advisory opinion from the 
ethics panel relating to the incompatibility of employment positions and the formulation of a 
management plan.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.5) 

Sec. 2-115. - Procedure for determinations by ethics panel.  

(a)  Referral of cases; notice of referral.  

(1)  A referral to the ethics panel shall be in writing and shall describe with particularity the factual 
basis of the referral.  

(2)  The ethics panel promptly shall give notice of the referral to the chair of the municipal board 
concerned and the public official whose personal relationship or financial involvement is the 
subject of the referral.  

(b)  Fact-finding.  

(1)  Upon receipt of a referral, the ethics panel shall determine the facts necessary to render an 
advisory opinion. The facts may be agreed upon and set forth in the referral. If additional fact-
gathering is necessary, the ethics panel, or a person designated by it, may conduct informal 
interviews and solicit additional information. The ethics panel shall determine the facts through a 
formal hearing process only if so requested either by the public official who is the subject of a 
referral or by the public officials who submitted a referral.  

(2)  In regard to its gathering of facts relating to the existence and nature of a personal relationship, 
the ethics panel shall be limited to the voluntary statements and other information provided by 
the public official whose relationship is at issue.  

(c)  Deliberation. Upon conclusion of its fact-finding, the ethics panel shall deliberate over the question 
referred to the panel. Any person may submit written comments to the ethics panel setting forth his 
position regarding the question under consideration.  

(d)  Issuance of advisory opinion. Upon conclusion of fact-finding and deliberation, the ethics panel shall 
issue a written advisory opinion that includes findings of fact, application of the standards set forth in 
this division, and recommendations. The ethics panel shall furnish a copy of its advisory opinion to 
the chair of the municipal board concerned and the public official whose personal relationship or 
financial involvement is the subject of the opinion.  

(e)  Time limits. The ethics panel shall attempt to issue its advisory opinion within two weeks of its 
receipt of a referral. The ethics panel may decline to consider referrals regarding conflict of interest 
questions relating to the final vote of a municipal board that occurred prior to the referral.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.6) 

Sec. 2-116. - Effect of recommendations of ethics panel.  



The opinion and recommendations of the ethics panel shall be advisory only. The members of a 
municipal board may vote to adopt the recommendation of the ethics panel as it relates to the 
participation in a matter by a public official.  

(Code 1967, § 1-4.7) 

Secs. 2-117—2-145. - Reserved.  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 132-11042019 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints James Pross as a regular voting member to the 
Ethics Committee for a three year term ending November 1, 2022. 
  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 133-11042019 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints Leonard Kimble as a regular voting member to 
the Ethics Committee for a one year term ending November 1, 2020. 
  
  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 134-11042019 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints Jared Doyle as alternate member to the Ethics 
Committee for a three year term ending November 1, 2022. 
  
  


	0  Agenda 11-4-2019
	1  Executive Session Info Sheet Ec Dev
	2  Info Sheet Timber Harvest
	2a  SLOTimberRepeal
	2b  SIGNED Timber Harvest_Council Recommendation
	2b  SIGNED_Petro's Council Recommendation
	2c  Timber Harvest Standards Staff Report
	2e Timber Harvest from Cons Comm
	4  AGzone info sheet 11.4.19
	4a  agzone 11-4-19 workshop
	Agriculture and Resource Protection (AG) Zone Workshop
	Options for Replacing the 50% Income Rule
	State Farming Land Use Requirement
	State Program�Proposed Ordinance
	Staff Concept
	Staff Concept�Proposed Ordinance
	Use of Non-Conforming Lots�(3 – 10 acre) in the AG Zone
	3 to 10-Acre Lot Proposed Ordinance
	3 to 10-Acre Lot �Proposed Ordinance
	Next Steps

	5  Info Sheet - Warden Ward Clerk Appt
	5a  Order 129-11042019 Warden Ward Clerk Appt
	6  Info sheet - forfreiture THOMPSON, KAMAU
	6a  Order 130-11042019 THOMPSON, KAMAU Forfeiture
	7  Minutes 10-21-2019
	8a1  Info sheet - Caper
	8a2  2018 Auburn CAPER 0.0 (1)
	8c1  Info Sheet - Communication - New Year's Auburn
	8c2  New Years 2019 - Map and Application
	9  Info Sheet - Morris Auto (002)
	9a  Morris Auto App
	9b  2019 Fire Inspections on Junkyards
	9b  Order  111-09162019 Morris Auto Parts Auto Junkyard
	9c  ECD Memo Morris Auto Followup 10.31.19
	10  Info Sheet - 965 Minot Avenue Zoning Amendment
	10a  Staff_Memo_Petros Rezoning_965 Minot Avenue_FinalDraft
	10b  965 Minot Petros Petition.CC Request
	10d  Petros Rezoning Application
	10e  954Minot_Parcel
	10f  Ordinance 14-10212019a Zoning Map Amendment Minot Ave
	10g  Ordinance 14-10212019b Zoning Map
	10h  Ordinance 14-10212019c Zoning Map
	11  Info Sheet - NEW Maximums
	11a  Ordinance 13-10212019 New MAX
	11b  GA sign off
	12  Info Sheet - LATC Appt Kelsey Earle
	12a  Order 125-10212019 LATC Appt. Kelsey Earle
	13  Info Sheet - Firehouse Grill
	13a  Firehouse Grill Application
	13b  Liquor License Hearing Ad -Firehouse Grill 2019
	13c  Order 131-11042019 Firehouse Grill
	14  Info Sheet - ethics
	14a  DIVISION_2.___ETHICS_AND_CONFLICTS_OF_INTEREST (1)
	14b  Order 132-11042019 Ethics Appointment Pross
	14c  Order 133-11042019 Ethics Appointment Kimble
	14d  Order 134-11042019 Ethics Appointment Bernier

